



City of Woodland Park
City Council
Agenda Revised 3/1/2022

March 3, 2022 at 7:00 PM

AGENDA

- 1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL**
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**
- 3. CEREMONIES, PRESENTATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS**
 - A. Proclamation declaring March 3, 2022 as Rusty Anthony Day.
 - B. Presentation and placement approval of a Veterans Memorial in Memorial Park.
(Presenter Jim Wear, Pro Promotions)
- 4. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA**
- 5. CONSENT CALENDAR**
- 6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (1)**
- 7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS**

(Public Comment may be heard (1))

 - A. Request for funding for Wild Fire Preparedness Day on May 7, 2022.
(Presenter, Mike Nakai)
- 8. ORDINANCES ON INITIAL POSTING**

(Public comment may be heard (1))

 - A. Consider Ordinance No. 1420, Series 2022, on initial posting, an Ordinance of the City Council for the City of Woodland Park, Colorado repealing Section 9.70.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code to allow for the possession of firearms in establishments selling alcoholic beverages and set the Public Hearing for March 17, 2022.(L)
(Presenter, Nina Williams, City Attorney)
 - B. Consider Ordinance No. 1419, Series 2022 on initial posting, an Ordinance of the City Council for the City of Woodland Park, Colorado amending multiple titles of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, regarding code penalties and violations and set the Public Hearing for March 17, 2022. (L)
(Presenter, Municipal Judge Elizabeth McClintock)
- 9. PUBLIC HEARINGS**

(Public comment may be heard (1))
- 10. NEW BUSINESS**

(Public comment may be heard (1))

11. REPORTS

(Public comment not necessary)

- A.** Mayor's Report
- B.** Council Reports
- C.** City Attorney's Report
- D.** City Manager's Report

12. ADJOURNMENT

13. Agenda Revised 3-1-2022

Key to agenda abbreviations:

(A) Administrative- matters involving day-to-day decisions such as approving contracts, hiring staff and the procurement of goods and services. Administrative actions generally do not require formal actions by the elected body.

(L)Legislative- typically in the policy arena; legislative matters affect large areas and large groups of people, such as enacting dog regulations or amending the City code. Legislative action generally involves motions, resolutions and ordinances.

(QJ)Quasi-Judicial- apply general rules to a specific interest, such as zoning change affecting a single piece of property, or a special use permit. Quasi-Judicial actions generally involve adjudication, sometimes in writing, but not a resolution or ordinance. Decision for Quasi-Judicial proceedings are made exclusively based upon the testimony presented on the record. Ex-parte communication (communication outside the official hearing) between elected officials and citizens is not permitted on Quasi-Judicial



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor LaBarre and City Council

FROM:

DATE: March 3, 2022

SUBJECT: Proclamation declaring March 3, 2022 as Rusty Anthony Day.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS: None



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor LaBarre and City Council

FROM:

DATE: March 3, 2022

SUBJECT: Presentation and placement approval of a Veterans Memorial in Memorial Park.
(Presenter Jim Wear, Pro Promotions)

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS: None

CITY OF WOODLAND PARK
2022 Wildfire Prep Day Funding

Background: Per the 2030 Comprehensive Plan shown below, fire prep day was a specific goal with a one year timeframe.

Public Safety and Emergency Management Goal 2: *Raise awareness of citizens to the risks of fire, promote fire preparedness, and facilitate fire mitigation in and around Woodland Park.*

Public Safety and Emergency Management Objective 2.1: Identify opportunities to raise fire awareness and preparedness within the community.

Public Safety and Emergency Management Action 2.1.1: Establish an annual fire preparedness day in which the City participates. Encourage participation by local emergency services. Encourage citizens to register for emergency notifications. Distribute publications on evacuation preparation, fire and flood insurance, personal property mitigation, and slash removal programs. (1 year)

The National Fire Protection Association sponsors a Wildfire Preparedness Day on the first Saturday in May. The first event was held in 2013 in Colorado and has grown ever since across the country. This year the event is May 7th.

Wildfire Community Preparedness Day



Wildfire Community Preparedness Day is a national campaign that encourages people and organizations everywhere to come together on a single day to take action to raise awareness and reduce wildfire risks.

NETCO has offered to host the event at the fire station.

We are hoping to provide experts in four areas:

- Notification
- Evacuation
- Mitigation for home and around home
- Insurance

Support Requested: “In-Kind” support from city staff and financial support in the following amount.

• Re-usable Banners	\$750
• Printing/Handouts	\$800
• Media Advertising	\$600
• Refreshments	\$150
	\$2300



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor LaBarre and City Council

FROM:

DATE: March 3, 2022

SUBJECT: Consider Ordinance No. 1420, Series 2022, on initial posting, an Ordinance of the City Council for the City of Woodland Park, Colorado repealing Section 9.70.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code to allow for the possession of firearms in establishments selling alcoholic beverages and set the Public Hearing for March 17, 2022.(L)
(Presenter, Nina Williams, City Attorney)

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to C.R.S. § 18-12-214(1)(c)(I), “local government... may enact an ordinance, resolution, rule, or other regulation that prohibits a permittee from carrying a concealed handgun in a building or specific area within the local government’s ...jurisdiction.” Under this and related authority, the City Council had previously adopted a prohibition on carrying dangerous or deadly weapons (such as a firearm) in establishments which sell alcohol for on-site consumption, codified as Section 9.70.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.

At a recent City Council meeting, this prohibition was revisited by a Council member. Following deliberation, the City Council determined that the public interest will be served by permitting the owners of establishments selling alcohol to establish individual firearm policies. Further, whether to prohibit the possession of firearms in particular areas of the City is a political decision of the City Council. In light of these considerations, the City Council directed the City Attorney’s Office to draft an ordinance repealing this provision.

This Ordinance will repeal Section 9.70.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, which reads: “It is unlawful for any person, as a patron of an establishment where beer or alcoholic beverages are sold for consumption on the premises, to possess or carry or display any dangerous or deadly weapon, whether concealed or not, while on the premises of such establishment.”

RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 1420 - Woodland Park - Firearms alcohol establishments

CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO
ORDINANCE NO. 1420
(Series of 2022)

**AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WOODLAND PARK,
COLORADO REPEALING SECTION 9.70.040 OF THE WOODLAND PARK
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR THE POSSESSION OF FIREARMS IN
ESTABLISHMENTS SELLING ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES**

WHEREAS, the City of Woodland Park, Colorado (the “City”) has been duly organized and is validly existing as a home rule city under Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado Constitution and the City Charter;

WHEREAS, pursuant to C.R.S. § 18-12-214(1)(c)(I), “[a] local government... may enact an ordinance, resolution, rule, or other regulation that prohibits a permittee from carrying a concealed handgun in a building or specific area within the local government’s... jurisdiction;”

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authority, the City Council previously adopted a prohibition on carrying dangerous or deadly weapons (such as a firearm) in establishments which sell alcohol for on-site consumption, codified as Section 9.70.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code (the “Code”);

WHEREAS, whether to prohibit the possession of firearms in particular areas of the City is a political decision of the City Council, who has expressed a desire for the enactment of this Ordinance;

WHEREAS, the City Council believes the public interest will be furthered by permitting the owners of establishments selling alcohol to establish individual firearm policies;

WHEREAS, other state-level prohibitions exist which regulate where firearms may be carried which will further public safety; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it desirable and appropriate, and in the best interest of the general health, safety, and welfare of its residents to repeal Section 9.70.040 of the Code to allow for the possession of firearms in establishments selling alcoholic beverages.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as conclusions, facts, determinations, and findings by the City Council.

Section 2. Section 9.70.040 of the Code, concerning possession of a dangerous or deadly weapon in an establishment selling alcohol, is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Section 3. *Severability.* The provisions of this ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause, or portion of the ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of the ordinance.

Section 4. *Effective Date.* This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its publication as required by law.

PASSED BY CITY COUNCIL ON SECOND AND FINAL READING FOLLOWING PUBLIC HEARING THIS ____ DAY OF _____, 2022.

City of Woodland Park

Hilary LaBarre, Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Suzanne Leclercq



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor LaBarre and City Council

FROM:

DATE: March 3, 2022

SUBJECT: Consider Ordinance No. 1419, Series 2022 on initial posting, an Ordinance of the City Council for the City of Woodland Park, Colorado amending multiple titles of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, regarding code penalties and violations and set the Public Hearing for March 17, 2022. (L)
(Presenter, Municipal Judge Elizabeth McClintock)

BACKGROUND: In recent legislative sessions, the General Assembly has passed a series of laws with respect to the provision of counsel to indigent defendants. In broad strokes, these laws provide that indigent defendants have a right to counsel where incarceration or imprisonment is a possible penalty and require local governments to fund this representation. Separately, the General Assembly raised the maximum amount a municipal court can fine from \$1,000 to \$2,650.

This series of recent state legislation prompted the City to undertake a comprehensive review of the Municipal Code to evaluate whether certain penalty provisions warranted revision. Specifically, the review sought to identify offenses for which incarceration or imprisonment was a possible penalty and to evaluate whether such a penalty was warranted. Additionally, this review included identifying and evaluating where fines issued by the Municipal Court could be raised.

In certain instances, the penalty of incarceration or imprisonment was not considered necessary, prudent, or in the best interests of the City. As such, and in order to prioritize and conserve taxpayer resources, this Ordinance removes the possibility of imprisonment or incarceration in those instances. (As a matter of criminal procedure, serious crimes are typically prosecuted as violations of state, not local, law. Very rarely is incarceration an appropriate penalty for the violation of a local ordinance.) Separately, this Ordinance also raises the maximum amount the Municipal Court may fine from \$1,000 to \$2,650 where appropriate.

At a recent City Council meeting, the City Council failed to approve a previous version of this Ordinance for a second reading. Upon the failed vote, the City Council directed the City Attorney's Office to prepare a fine schedule recommending fines for the various violations identified in the Woodland Park Municipal Code. Research was conducted into the fine schedules of other similar municipalities and the attached Fine Schedule was prepared based on the fining practices of related communities. (Note that many municipalities do not have a comprehensive fine schedule for municipal violations, instead deferring to the discretion of the municipal judge to determine the

appropriate amount of the fine based on the factual circumstances of the offense.)

The attached resolution and fine schedule created in concert with this ordinance are currently for informational purposes only. If the Ordinance is passed, these two items will then be officially brought before the City Council on 3/17/2022.

RECOMMENDATION:

- ATTACHMENTS:**
1. Ordinance 1419 - Woodland Park - Fine Schedule
 2. Resolution - Woodland Park - Fine Schedule
 3. Woodland Park - Fine Schedule

CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO
ORDINANCE NO. 1419
(Series of 2022)

**AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WOODLAND PARK,
COLORADO AMENDING MULTIPLE TITLES OF THE WOODLAND PARK
MUNICIPAL CODE, REGARDING CODE PENALTIES AND VIOLATIONS**

WHEREAS, the City of Woodland Park, Colorado (the “City”) has been duly organized and is validly existing as a home rule city under the Colorado Constitution and the home rule charter of the City;

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authority, the City Council has previously adopted provisions proscribing certain conduct and attaching penalties thereto, codified throughout the Woodland Park Municipal Code (the “Code”);

WHEREAS, Colorado House Bill 16-1309, “concerning a defendant’s right to counsel in certain cases considered by municipal courts,” concluded that both the United States and Colorado constitutions provide that an accused person has the right to be represented by counsel in criminal prosecutions, and that this constitutional right is interpreted to mean that counsel will be provided at municipal court, at a local government taxpayer’s expense, for indigent persons in all cases in which incarceration is a possible penalty;

WHEREAS, Colorado Senate Bill 18-203, “concerning the provision of independent counsel to indigent defendants in municipal courts,” requires each municipality, on and after January 1, 2020, to provide, and pay for, independent indigent defense for each indigent defendant facing a possible jail sentence for a violation of a municipal ordinance;

WHEREAS, the aforementioned recent state legislation has prompted the City to review the Code for offenses and violations for which incarceration or imprisonment is a possible penalty and evaluate where such a penalty is needed and where it is unnecessary in order to manage, prioritize, and conserve taxpayer resources;

WHEREAS, in performing this review, the City discovered other inconsistencies and redundancies throughout the Code related to penalties and violations that required clarification, correction, and updating;

WHEREAS, Colorado House Bill 13-1060, “concerning maximum municipal court fines,” raises the maximum amount a municipal court can fine from \$1,000 to \$2,650;

WHEREAS, in updating the maximum authorized fine amount, the City Council wishes to provide guidance to the Woodland Park Municipal Court in the form of a fine schedule;

WHEREAS, the City Council has prepared a fine schedule and plans to adopt it via resolution in conjunction with the passage of this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it desirable and appropriate, and in the best interest of the general health, safety, and welfare of its residents to amend the Code to remove the penalty of incarceration or imprisonment for certain violations, to increase the maximum amount the Municipal Court can fine for certain violations, and to clarify, correct and update other inconsistencies or redundancies as they relate to Code violations and penalties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as conclusions, facts, determinations, and findings by the City Council.

Section 2. The following sections within Title 1 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning general provisions, are hereby amended to read as follows:

1.01.100 - Violations and penalties. ~~punishment.~~

It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision or to fail to comply with any of the requirements of this code. Any person who shall violate any of the provisions of this code shall be punishable by a fine of not more than ~~three hundred dollars or by imprisonment for a period of not more than ninety days or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **two thousand six hundred and fifty dollars, and imprisonment shall not be a possible penalty except where specifically noted.** Each such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during any portion of which any violation of any provisions of this code is committed, continued, or permitted by such person and shall be punished accordingly. In addition to the penalties hereinabove provided, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this code shall be deemed a public nuisance and may be, by this city, summarily abated as such, and each day that such condition continues shall be regarded as a new and separate offense.

1.12.010 - Designated.

Whenever under the charter or any ordinance of the city heretofore or hereafter enacted, or any section, rule or regulation promulgated under the provisions or ordinances or promulgated under the authority of any ordinance hereafter enacted, any act is prohibited or is made or declared to be unlawful or an offense or misdemeanor, or the doing of any act is required, or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful or an offense or misdemeanor, or where a person fails to meet a standard of conduct or behavior described in the provisions of any ordinance or charter provision where no specific penalty is provided therefore: any person who is convicted of the violation of any such provision or other ordinance of the city hereafter enacted or of such rules or regulations shall be punished by a fine of not more than ~~one thousand dollars, or by imprisonment in jail not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment or by any combination thereof~~ **two thousand six hundred and fifty dollars, and imprisonment shall**

not be a possible penalty except where specifically noted. All fines imposed by the city shall generally be in accordance with the fine schedule adopted by resolution of the city council, as amended from time to time.

1.16.030 - Satisfaction of fines—Inability to pay—Refusal to comply.

In the event any offender is given the opportunity of an alternate method of discharging his obligation to the municipality, and accepts the conditions incident thereto, and fails and neglects to perform such conditions, then such failure or refusal shall constitute a separate offense against the ordinances of the city, and upon conviction of such offense, the offender may be punished by ~~imprisonment for not more than ninety days, the imposition of a fine of not more than three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** ~~or by both such imprisonment and fine; provided, however, that no such convicted person shall be confined for more than ninety days for any one conviction, except as herein provided for the willful failure to pay an imposed fine.~~ In the event the court determines the maximum allowable penalty should be imposed, and finds the offender to be indigent, alternate requirements, as set forth in this chapter or devised by the court, shall be imposed.

1.24.040 - Penalty.

Any person who is convicted of a violation of this chapter shall be punished by a fine ~~of not more than three hundred dollars or by not more than ninety days in jail, or by both said fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

Section 3. Section 1.01.110 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning penalty sections of the Code, is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Section 4. Section 1.16.010 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning satisfactions of fines, refusal to pay and incarceration, is hereby repealed in its entirety.

Section 5. Section 2.44.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning local historical preservation, protection, and landmark designation, is hereby amended to read as follows:

2.44.040 - Proceedings of the city council.

All decisions required by the city council in this chapter shall pass or fail based on a two-thirds majority quorum vote.

...

N. Enforcement and Penalties. No person shall violate or permit to be violated any of the requirements of this chapter. Violators, if found guilty, shall be subject to a fine ~~not to exceed one thousand dollars and/or up to ninety days in jail~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** In addition, ~~to those penalties,~~ the violator(s) are **also** subject to the following penalties:

1. Alterations to a landmark without approval will result in a one-year moratorium on all building permits for the subject property.

2. Moving or demolishing a landmark without approval will result in a five-year moratorium on all moving, demolition or building permits for the property at the structure's original location.

Section 6. The following sections within Title 3 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning revenue and finance, are hereby amended to read as follows:

3.04.200 - Compromise.

A. Compromise Limitation. After an assessment has become final because the taxpayer has waived its right to a hearing or because the hearing officer has issued his or her final decision, the revenue officer or city attorney may compromise to the extent of ~~one thousand dollars~~ **two thousand six hundred and fifty dollars** any collection proceedings arising under this code.

B. Compromise Record. Whenever a compromise, in value or valuation, of ~~one thousand dollars~~ **two thousand six hundred and fifty dollars** or less is made by the revenue officer, the city attorney or his designee in any case, there shall be placed on file in the office of the revenue officer or his delegate the opinion of the revenue officer or the city attorney, with his reasons therefor, which may include financial inability of the taxpayer to pay a greater amount, with a statement of:

1. The amount of tax assessed;
2. The amount of interest, additional amount, to the tax, or assessable penalty, imposed by law on the person against whom the tax is assessed; and
3. The amount paid in accordance with the terms of the compromise.

3.08.080 - License for vendors.

...

Doing business without a license is ~~a misdemeanor punishable by a fine, or imprisonment or both~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

3.08.290 - Retailer license—Application contents.

...

Any person selling tangible personal property at retail in Woodland Park who has never obtained a Sales Tax License, or any such person who continues to make such sales after his license has been revoked, shall be ~~deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished accordingly~~ **punishable by a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

3.08.350 - Violations—Penalties.

It is unlawful for any person to violate any of the provisions of this chapter. Any violation of this chapter shall be punishable by a fine ~~of not more than one thousand dollars or by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

3.32.100 - Violation—Penalty.

Upon conviction, the municipal court shall punish any officer, agent or manager of a provider subject to this chapter who fails, neglects or refuses to make or file the annual statement of accounts as required herein by a fine ~~of up to one thousand dollars and/or a jail sentence of up to one year~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** Said penalty shall also be available to the court for imposition upon any provider who fails, neglects or refuses to pay the tax when and as due. Each day the statement or tax is delinquent is a separate and distinct offense.

Section 7. The following sections within Title 5 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning business licenses, is hereby amended to read as follows:

5.04.120 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm, corporation, or association violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be subject to immediate revocation of any license issued under this chapter and shall be punished upon conviction by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars or by imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** for each offense.

5.08.020 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person convicted of violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be punished by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

5.09.130 - Violation—Penalty.

Violation of this chapter shall be deemed a violation of this municipal code and subject the violator to a fine ~~of not less than twenty-five dollars nor more than three hundred dollars or to imprisonment up to ninety days, or both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

5.18.050 - Furnishing tobacco products prohibited.

A. Any person who knowingly furnishes to any person who is under eighteen years of age, by gift, sale, or any other means, any cigarettes or tobacco products, as defined herein, commits a violation of this code and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine ~~not to exceed five hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** It shall be an affirmative defense to a prosecution under this section that the person furnishing the

tobacco product was presented with and reasonably relied upon a document which identified the person receiving the tobacco product as being eighteen years of age or older.

B. Any person who is under eighteen years of age and who purchases any cigarettes or tobacco products, as defined herein, commits a violation of this code and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not to exceed five hundred dollars, or the court may allow such persons to perform community service and be granted credit against the fine and court costs at the rate of five dollars for each hour of work performed~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

C. Any person who sells or offers to sell any cigarettes or tobacco products, as defined herein, by use of a vending machine or other coin-operated machine, commits a violation of this code and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not to exceed five hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**, except that cigarettes may be sold at retail through vending machines only in:

1. Factories, businesses, offices, or other places not open to the general public;
2. Places to which persons under the age of eighteen years are not permitted access; or
3. Places where the vending machine is under the direct supervision of the owner of the establishment or an adult employee of the owner, including, but not limited to, establishments holding a valid liquor license. As used in this section, "under direct supervision" means the vending machine shall be in plain vision of the employee or owner during regular business hours. It shall be an affirmative defense to a prosecution under this subsection that the person selling or offering to sell the tobacco product was presented with and reasonably relied upon a document which identified the person purchasing the tobacco product as being eighteen years of age or older.

D. Any person who sells or offers to sell any cigarettes or tobacco product shall display a warning sign, as specified herein. Any person who fails to display said warning sign commits a violation of this code, and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not to exceed five hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**. Said warning sign shall be displayed in a prominent place in the building and on such machine at all times and shall have a minimum height of three inches and a width of six inches, and shall read as follows:

WARNING:

IT IS ILLEGAL FOR ANY PERSON UNDER EIGHTEEN YEARS OF AGE TO
PURCHASE CIGARETTES AND TOBACCO PRODUCTS AND, UPON
CONVICTION, A ~~\$500.00~~ **\$2,650.00** FINE MAY BE IMPOSED.

5.18.060 - Minimum age to sell tobacco products.

It is unlawful for any licensee or any officer, associate, member, representative, agent or employee of such licensee, to engage, employ or permit any person under the age of eighteen years of age to sell tobacco products in any licensed premises. Any person who violates this

provision shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine ~~not to exceed two hundred fifty dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

5.18.070 - False or altered identification.

It is unlawful for any person under the age of eighteen years of age to misrepresent that person's identity or age, to use any false or altered identification for the purpose of purchasing tobacco products. Any person who violates this provision, shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine ~~not to exceed two hundred fifty dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** ~~The court may allow such person to perform community service and be granted credit against the fine and court costs at the rate of five dollars for each hour of work performed.~~

5.18.080 - Possession by minors prohibited.

It is unlawful for any person under the age of eighteen years to possess any tobacco products; provided that the possession by a person under the age of eighteen years under the direct supervision of the parent or guardian of such person in the privacy of the parent's or guardian's home shall not be prohibited. Any person who violates this provision, shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine ~~not to exceed one hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** ~~The court may allow such person to perform community service and be granted credit against the fine and court costs at the rate of five dollars for each hour of work performed.~~

5.18.090 - Proximity to certain institutions.

It is unlawful for any person to sell, offer for sale, give away or deliver tobacco products within one hundred feet of any school, child care facility or other building used for educational or recreational programs for persons under the age of eighteen years, any person who violates this provision, shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a fine ~~not to exceed five hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

5.18.110 - Suspension—Revocation of license—Fines—Costs.

A. The Woodland Park revenue officer shall be charged with the administration of this chapter and may suspend or revoke any license issued under the provisions of this chapter, if he/she determines that the licensee has violated any of the provisions herein. In lieu of suspension or revocation of a license, a fine may be levied on the licensee. The fine imposed shall ~~not exceed five hundred dollars for each violation~~ **be in accordance with Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** Each day on which a violation continues shall constitute a separate violation.

5.21.300 - Violation.

A. Any person who fails or refuses to obey or comply with or violates any of the provisions of this chapter commits a minor offense and upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not more than one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00)~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** for each separate violation.

Section 8. The following sections within Title 6 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning animals, are hereby amended to read as follows:

6.04.027 - Feeding wildlife.

...

(c) A violation of feeding wildlife shall be punishable by a fine ~~of not less than three hundred and fifty dollars for the first violation. Second violations of this section shall be punishable by a fine of not less than four hundred fifty dollars and not more than five hundred fifty dollars. Third and subsequent violations may result in a fine up to one thousand dollars and or imprisonment not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

6.04.116. - Penalties.

(a) Each violation of any provision of this chapter shall be punishable upon conviction by a ~~maximum fine of not to exceed \$1,000.00 or by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

Section 9. The following sections within Title 8 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning health and safety, are hereby amended to read as follows:

8.04.190 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm, corporation or partnership violating any provisions of this chapter, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not more than three hundred dollars, imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

8.08.280 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm, corporation or association violating any provision of this chapter shall be punished upon conviction by a fine ~~not to exceed one thousand dollars or by imprisonment for not more than one year or by both such fine and imprisonment for each offense~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

8.12.040 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm, corporation or association violating any provisions of this chapter shall be punished upon conviction by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days or by both such fine and imprisonment for each offense~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.** A separate offense shall be deemed committed on each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues.

8.15.180 - Penalty for violation.

Any person, firm, corporation or association violating any provision of this chapter ~~shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine of not less than ten dollars, nor more than three hundred dollars, or by imprisonment of not more than ninety days in jail, or by both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

Section 10. The following sections within Title 9 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning public peace, morals, and welfare, are hereby amended to read as follows:

9.01.070 - Violation—Penalty.

Whenever in this title, any section or a rule or regulation promulgated under the provisions of this title any act is prohibited or is made or declared to be unlawful or an offense or the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared to be unlawful or an offense or where a person fails to meet a standard of conduct or behavior described in the provisions of this title where no specific penalty is provided therefor, any person who shall be convicted of the violation of any such provision of this title or of such rules or regulations, shall be punished by a fine ~~of not more than three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or by ninety days in jail or by both; provided, however, if at the time of the offense the person committing the offense is less than eighteen years of age, no jail sentence may be imposed against him or her.

9.28.020 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of the crime of assault the municipal court may sentence an offender to a term in the county jail not to exceed one year or a fine ~~of not to exceed one thousand dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or both such fine and imprisonment.

9.30.030 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of the crime of possession of marijuana and/or the possession of drug paraphernalia the municipal court may sentence an offender to a fine ~~not to exceed one thousand dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

9.30.040 - Sale of Marijuana grown for personal use; penalty.

B. In addition to any other penalties that may exist under state, federal, and local laws, violation of this section shall be punishable by a fine **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** ~~not exceeding one thousand dollars, or by imprisonment not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment, as set forth in the Municipal Code Section 1.12.110.~~

9.41.040. - Penalty for violation.

Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter ~~shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in an amount not exceeding one thousand dollars, or~~

be imprisoned for a period not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**. Each day such violation is committed or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such under this chapter.

9.41.050. - Enforcement.

Violations of this chapter shall be prosecuted in the same manner as other ~~misdemeanor~~ violations of the city's code **Woodland Park Municipal Code**. No complaint shall be issued in the event the cause of the violation is removed, the condition abated or fully corrected.

9.59.060 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of the crime of fraud by check the municipal court may sentence an offender to a term in the county jail not to exceed one year or **impose a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** ~~a fine of not to exceed one thousand dollars or both such fine and imprisonment.~~

9.61.030 - Violation—Penalty.

Any minor violating the provisions of Section 9.61.010 shall be dealt with in accordance with Section 9.01.070. Any parent, guardian, or other adult person having the care and custody of a minor violating Section 9.61.020 shall be punished in accordance with Section 9.01.070, **except that no term of imprisonment shall be imposed.**

9.66.020 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of the crime of possession and/or consumption of alcoholic beverages by an underage person the municipal court may ~~sentence a minor offender to a term in the juvenile detention facility as provided by law and impose a fine not to exceed one thousand dollars or both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**. An adult convicted of this crime may be sentenced to a term in the County jail ~~not to exceed one year or assessed a fine of not to exceed one thousand dollars or both such fine and imprisonment~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**.

9.80.090 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of the crime of unlawful use or sale of fireworks, the municipal court may sentence an offender to a term in the county jail not to exceed one year or **impose a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** ~~of not to exceed one thousand dollars or both such fine and imprisonment.~~

9.90.090 - Penalty.

Upon conviction of violations of this chapter, the municipal court may sentence an offender to a term in the county jail not to exceed one year or **impose a fine as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of**

the Woodland Park Municipal Code of not to exceed \$1,000.00 or both such fine and imprisonment.

Section 11. The following sections within Title 12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning streets and sidewalks, are hereby amended to read as follows:

12.02.020 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall be punished upon conviction by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or both such fine and imprisonment for each offense~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

12.03.040 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall be punished upon conviction by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or both such fine and imprisonment for each offense~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.**

Section 12. The following sections within Title 13 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning utilities, are hereby amended to read as follows:

13.05.060 - Violations and punishment.

It shall be unlawful for any person to knowingly violate any provision or to fail to comply with any of the requirements of this chapter. Any person who violates any of the provisions of this chapter shall be punishable by a fine ~~of not more than one thousand dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or by imprisonment of not more than ~~one year~~ **ninety days**, or by both such fine ~~an~~ **and** imprisonment. Each such person shall be guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during and portion of which any violation of any provisions of this chapter is committed, continued, or permitted by such person and shall be punished accordingly. In addition to the penalties herein above provided, any condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter shall be deemed a public nuisance and may be summarily abated by the city.

13.52.010 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm or corporation who violates this title or any of its provisions shall, upon conviction thereof, be punished by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or by imprisonment for not more than ninety days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day of violation shall be considered a separate offense.

Section 13. Section 16.56.040 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning mobile homes, is hereby amended to read as follows:

16.56.040 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person who violates any provision of this title shall upon conviction be punished by a fine ~~of not less than five dollars nor more than three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**; and each day's failure of compliance with any such provision shall constitute a separate violation.

Section 14. Section 17.56.030 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning subdivisions, is hereby amended to read as follows:

17.56.030 - Violation—Penalty.

Any person, firm, co-partnership, association, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this title ~~shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and~~ shall upon conviction thereof be punished by a fine ~~not to exceed three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or by imprisonment not to exceed ninety days, or both, at the discretion of the municipal court. The sale of each and every lot sold in violation of this title shall be considered a separate violation.

Section 15. The following sections within Title 18 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning utilities, are hereby amended to read as follows:

18.40.190 - Penalty.

Any person who knowingly or ~~wilfully~~ **willfully** violates any provision of this chapter, or rule or order adopted or issued pursuant to this chapter or who knowingly or ~~wilfully~~ **willfully** initiates or continues a land-disturbing activity for which an erosion control plan is required except in accordance with the terms, conditions, and provisions of an approved plan, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment not to exceed one year, or by a fine ~~not to exceed one thousand dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code** or both, in the discretion of the court.

18.75.030 - Penalty designated.

Any person, firm, or corporation who violates, disobeys, omits, neglects, or refuses to comply with or who resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this title shall be **punished by a fine** ~~finer not less than five dollars and not more than three hundred dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**, or **by imprisonment not to exceed ninety days in jail, or both, for each offense.**

18.79.030. - Uses prohibited; penalty.

C. In addition to any other penalties that may exist under state, federal, and local laws, violation of this section shall be punishable by a fine ~~not exceeding one thousand dollars~~ **as set forth in Chapter 1.12 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code**, or by imprisonment not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment, ~~as set forth in the Municipal Code Section 1.12.010.~~

Each day that a violation of any of the provisions of this chapter continues to exist shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense.

Section 16. Section 20.04.060 of the Woodland Park Municipal Code, concerning flood damage prevention regulations, is hereby amended to read as follows:

20.04.060 - Penalties.

Any violation of any portion of the Flood Damage Prevention Regulations Code herein adopted is hereby declared to be unlawful and punishable as set forth in Chapter 1.12 ~~General Penalty~~ of the Woodland Park Municipal Code.

Section 17. *Severability.* The provisions of this ordinance are severable and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause, or portion of the ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of the ordinance.

Section 18. *Effective Date.* This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its publication as required by law.

PASSED BY CITY COUNCIL ON SECOND AND FINAL READING FOLLOWING PUBLIC HEARING THIS ____ DAY OF _____, 2022.

City of Woodland Park

Hilary LaBarre, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Suzanne Leclercq

CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO
RESOLUTION NO. ____
(Series of 2022)

**A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF WOODLAND PARK,
COLORADO ADOPTING A FINE SCHEDULE FOR PENALTIES IMPOSED BY THE
WOODLAND PARK MUNICIPAL COURT**

WHEREAS, the City of Woodland Park, Colorado (the “City”) has been duly organized and is validly existing as a home rule city under the Colorado Constitution and the home rule charter of the City;

WHEREAS, pursuant to this authority, the City Council has previously adopted provisions proscribing certain conduct and attaching penalties thereto, codified throughout the Woodland Park Municipal Code (the “Code”);

WHEREAS, recent state legislation has prompted the City to review the offenses and violations contained within the Code and evaluate the efficacy of the identified penalties with respect to the goal of managing, prioritizing, and conserving taxpayer resources;

WHEREAS, related recent state legislation raised the maximum amount a municipal court can fine from \$1,000 to \$2,650;

WHEREAS, in updating the maximum authorized fine amount, the City Council wishes to provide guidance to the Woodland Park Municipal Court in the form of a fine schedule;

WHEREAS, the City Council directed to the City Attorney’s Office to prepared a fine schedule with recommended penalties for the offenses and violations contained within the Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it desirable and appropriate, and in the best interest of the general health, safety, and welfare of its residents to adopt the newly created Fine Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

**NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO, AS FOLLOWS:**

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated as conclusions, facts, determinations, and findings by the City Council.

Section 2. This resolution and the newly created Fine Schedule are intended to supersede all previous fine schedules adopted by the City Council.

Section 3. Effective upon approval, the City hereby adopts the created Fine Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION IS HEREBY ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
WOODLAND PARK, COLORADO ON THIS ____ DAY OF _____, 2022.

City of Woodland Park

Hilary LaBarre, Mayor Pro-Tem

ATTEST:

City Clerk, Suzanne Leclercq

Exhibit A

Woodland Park Fine Schedule

**Woodland Park
Municipal Court
Fine Schedule**

The attached Fine Schedule is adopted pursuant to Woodland Park Municipal Code Chapter 1.12 and is effective as of [month] [day], 2022. This Fine Schedule supersedes any previously adopted schedule for the same.

Fines for violations of the Woodland Park Municipal Code shall generally be in accordance with this Fine Schedule, but additional administrative costs may be assessed by the Municipal or City Clerk and the Municipal Judge may revise the fine amount in his or her discretion.

Violation	Fine	Comments
Title 3 - Revenue and Finance		
Chapter 3.08 - Finance Doing Business Without a License	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 3.32 - Occupation Tax on Telephone Utilities Failure to File an Annual Statement; Late Payment	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Title 5 - Business Regulations		
Chapter 5.04 - Business Licenses Doing Business Without a License	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 5.08 - Junk, Scrap, and Auto Salvage Yards Operating a Junk, Scrap, or Auto Salvage Yard	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 5.09 - Pawnbrokers Any Violation	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.

Chapter 5.18 - Tobacco Products Furnishing Tobacco Products to a Minor; Minimum Age to Sell; False or Altered Identification; Possession by Minors; Proximity to Certain Institutions	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 5.21 - Sexually Oriented Business Licensing Program Any Violation	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Title 6 - Animals		
Chapter 6.04 - Dog and Other Animal Regulations Feeding Wildlife	\$85.00	Escalated fines are recommended for second and subsequent offenses.
Chapter 6.04 - Dog and Other Animal Regulations Any Other Violation	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Title 8 - Health and Safety		
Chapter 8.04 - Garbage and Refuse Control Any Violation	\$170.00	
Chapter 8.08 - Control of Beetles Any Violation	\$170.00	

Chapter 8.12 - Camping in Designated Areas Permit Required	\$85.00	
Chapter 8.15 - Drainage Culverts Any Violation	\$170.00	
Title 9 - Public Peace, Morals and Welfare		
Chapter 9.04 - Peace Officers Resisting; Assault; Interference or Hinderance; Assisting Escape; and Rescuing from Custody; Failure of Citizen to Aid Police Officer	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.07 - Impersonating an Officer Wearing Uniform; Counterfeiting Uniform; Exercising Authority	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.10 - Failure to Disperse Unlawful Assembly	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.13 - False Alarms False Alarms; Defective Alarm Systems	\$85.00	

Chapter 9.22 - Unlawful Use of Telephone Disturbance or Harassment Prohibited	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.28 - Assault Assault	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.30 - Possession of Marijuana and/or Drug Paraphernalia Possession of Marijuana; Possession of Drug Paraphernalia; Public Possession or Consumption of Marijuana; Sale of Marijuana Grown for Personal Use	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.31 - Urination or Defecation Urination or Defecation	\$170.00	
Chapter 9.31 - Urination or Defecation Public Indecency; Indecent Exposure	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.40 - Fighting and Brawling Fighting and Brawling; Fighting Words; Harassment; Menacing	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.

Chapter 9.41 - Noise Excessive Noise	\$50.00	
Chapter 9.43 - Disturbing Lawful Assemblies Disturbing Lawful Assemblies	\$85.00	
Chapter 9.45 - Public Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages Public Consumption	\$85.00	
Chapter 9.52 - City Property Damaging City Property	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.55 - Private Property Damaging Private Property; Trespassing; Parking; Unlawful Use	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.58 - Stealing Theft; Price Switching; Obtaining Control Over Stolen Thing; Theft by Lessee; Concealment of Goods	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.59 - Fraud by Check Fraud by Check	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.

Chapter 9.61 - Curfew Loitering Prohibited by Minors; Parent Responsibility	\$50.00	
Chapter 9.62 - Harboring of Unmarried Minors Harboring	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.66 - Possession and/or Consumption of Alcoholic Beverages by a Minor Underage Possession/Consumption	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.70 - Dangerous or Deadly Weapons Unlawful Display; Possession in Establishment Selling Alcoholic Beverages; Discharge of Weapons; Switchblade Knife; Selling Weapons to Intoxicated Persons or Minors	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.72 - Throwing Missiles Throwing Missiles at Vehicles	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Chapter 9.80 - Fireworks Sale or Use; Sale of Display Fireworks at Retail	\$100.00	

Chapter 9.90 - Outdoor Fire Uses and Emergency Safety Regulations Prohibited Fire	\$170.00	
Title 12 - Streets and Sidewalks		
Chapter 12.02 - Transfer of Snow onto City Property Transfer of Snow onto City Property	\$85.00	
Chapter 12.03 - Soil Erosion Prevention Any Violation	\$170.00	
Title 13 - Utilities		
Chapter 13.05 - Drought and Non-Drought Watering Restrictions and Extending a Modified Open Burning Ban Any Violation	\$170.00	Court appearance recommended for more egregious violations.
Chapter 13.52 - Enforcement Any Violation	\$170.00	Court appearance recommended for more egregious violations.
Title 16 - Mobile Homes		
Chapter 16.56 - Administration and Penalties Any Violation	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Title 17 - Subdivisions		

Chapter 17.56 - Enforcement and Penalties Any Violation	Mandatory Court Appearance	Fine to be determined based on the nature of the violation.
Title 18 - Zoning		
Chapter 18.40 - Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Any Violation	\$170.00	Court appearance recommended for more egregious violations.
Chapter 18.75 - Violation- Penalty Any Violation	\$170.00	Court appearance recommended for more egregious violations.
Chapter 18.75 - Violation- Penalty Any Violation	\$170.00	Court appearance recommended for more egregious violations.